
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY MARCH 15, 2022 
 
****PLEASE NOTE**** 
6:00 PM: PRE - LOCAL BOARD OF APPEALS AND EQUALIZATION MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Hennepin County Assessor Mel Potter: Present Preliminary Local Board of Appeals and 

Equalization Information. 
 

3. Adjourn. 
 

****************************************************************************** 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
4. Call to Order 
 
5. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
6. Roll Call 

 
7. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the March 1, 2022, Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 21094-21117) 
c. Agriculture Preserve Renewal Applications for the Following Properties: 

i. PID No. 03-118-24-33-0001 (Requested by Sharon Hafften) 
ii. PID No’s. 29-118-24-44-0002, 29-118-24-44-0001 (Requested by Grace 

Nolan Trust) 
iii. PID No. 13-118-24-32-0002 (Requested by Deborah White) 

 
8. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  

 
9. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 

	
10. West Hennepin Public Safety – Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the February 2022 

Activity Report. 
 



 

11. Bryant Johnson (Applicant) and Hilltop Farm, Inc. (Owner) is requesting Final Plat Approval 
for a 13-lot subdivision of the property located between CSAH 90 and CSAH 83 and 
identified as PID No. 2611824130001. 

 
a. RESOLUTION 22-0315-01: Considering approval of the Final Plat for HILLTOP 

PRAIRIE subdivision. 
 

b. ORDINANCE 2022-02: Considering adoption of the Hilltop Prairie Storm Sewer 
Improvement Tax District. 

 
c. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – Considering approval of the Development 

Agreement detailing the terms of the City’s approval of the subdivision and related 
public improvements and similar requirements.   

 
12. Consideration of RESOLUTION 22-0315-02, confirming the deferral of special assessments 

on the property located at 2930 Lindgren Lane following approval of a lot line rearrangement 
which alters the underlying property.   
 

13. Open/Misc. 
 

14. Adjourn. 



1 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. 
March 1, 2022 
, 2021 

 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY MARCH 1, 2022 – 6:30 P.M. 
City Hall Chambers 

 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

  3.   ROLL CALL 
 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Betts, McCoy and 
 Grotting  
ABSENT: None 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas 
VISITORS: None 

 
 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 
a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the February 15, 2022, Regular City Council 

Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accessory Building Review Committee (ABRC) Minutes from the February 15, 

2022, ABRC Meeting. 
c. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 21068-21074 and Batch # 2; 

Checks Numbered 21075-21093). 
d. Large Assembly Permit for Tour-de-Tonka – To be Held on Saturday, August 6, 2022. 
e. Consider Approval of Prosecuting Attorney JPA and Court Data Services Subscriber 

Agreement Amendment. 
i. RESOLUTION 22-0301-01 – Resolution Approving State of Minnesota Joint Powers 

Agreements with the City of Independence on Behalf of its City Attorney 
 
 
Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve the Consent Agenda items A, B & C. Ayes: 
Johnson, Spencer, Betts, Grotting and McCoy. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 



2 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. 
March 1, 2022 
, 2021 

 

 

 
McCoy mentioned that last year Tour de Tonka only paid for half of the amount they were billed for and 
suggested approving it subject to payment. Spencer asked if there was a rational for not getting payment. 
McCoy said that the City received some payment but he has not followed up on that yet. Betts 
mentioned that we could collect an escrow payment. Spencer said we should just require payment on 
this one. Johnson said if they do not pay, we would not approve their assembly permit for next year.  
 
Motion by McCoy, second by Spencer to approve the Consent Agenda item D for Tour de 
Tonka Assembly Permit subject to payment. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, Betts, Grotting and 
McCoy. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 
Johnson asked if the JPA is a new agreement or a renewal. Kaltsas said it is a renewal. We did this a 
couple of years ago also since they require it for our prosecuting attorneys to obtain information. 
Johnson asked if we would need to have another agreement with the police department as well that is 
similar to this. Kaltsas said he doesn’t think so since the police will use this and prosecute through the 
city. Johnson confirmed that this agreement is for 5 years. Kaltsas said yes.  
 
Motion by Johnson, second by Spencer to approve the Consent Agenda item E for the JPA 
Agreement and court data services. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, Betts, Grotting and McCoy. 
Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 
 
 
5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 
 

6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 
 
 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 

• LMCC 
• Workshop 

 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 

• Workshop 
• ABRC 

 
McCoy attended the following meetings: 

• Workshop (virtual) 
 
 
Betts attended the following meetings:  

• Drug Task Force Luncheon 
• Workshop 



3 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. 
March 1, 2022 
, 2021 

 

 

 
Johnson attended the following meetings:  

• Methodist Church Delano Love Inc. 
• Drug Taskforce Dinner 
• Workshop 
• Baker Tilly Webinar Workshop (virtual) 
• Sensible Land Use (virtual) 
• Orono Healthy Youth (virtual) 
• Citizens League (virtual) 
• Senators Annual Picture at the Capital with former Senator Gen Olson 
• Adele Rumpsa Funeral 
• Orono School Board Meeting 

 
 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

• None 
 

 
7. Consider Approval of Resolution Reestablishing Precincts and Polling Places Following the 
State’s Congressional and Legislative Redistricting. 

 
a. RESOLUTION 22-0301-02 - Resolution Reestablishing Precincts and Polling Places 

Following Legislative Redistricting. 
 
 
Johnson asked if the County Commissioner District was involved in the redistricting. Kaltsas said they 
were but he did not see the final county commissioner district map so nothing should have changed for 
us. Johnson said if anything were to change it would most likely be in the Plymouth and Brooklyn Park 
area that is growing so fast. Kaltsas said this is just a formality to reapprove our district and polling 
place.  
 
Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve Resolution 22-0301-02 Reestablishing 
Precinct and Polling Place. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, Betts, Grotting and McCoy. Nays: None. 
Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 
 
 

8.   Open/Misc.  
 

 
9. Adjorn 

 
Motion by Grotting, second by McCoy to adjourn at 6:45pm. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, 
Grotting, McCoy and Betts. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None. MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 



4 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 6:30 p.m. 
March 1, 2022 
, 2021 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Amber Simon / Recording Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 























Hilltop Farm – Final Plat Review Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Final Plat for a 13 Lot Subdivision to be Known as HILLTOP PRAIRIE on the 
Subject Property Located Between CSAH 90 and CSAH 83  

 
To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

Applicant: Bryant Johnson 

Owner: Hilltop Farm, Inc. 

Location: Property Identified by PID No. 26-118-24-13-0001  

 

Request: 
Bryant Johnson (Applicant) and Hilltop Farm, Inc. (Owner) is requesting the following actions 
for the property located between CSAH 90 and CSAH 83 and identified as PID No. 
2611824130001.   
 

a. Final Plat to allow a 13-lot subdivision to be known as HILLTOP PRAIRIE.   
 
  
Property/Site Information: 
The property is located on the east side of CSAH 90, north of the future Turner Road and south 
of Main Street.  There is a grass air strip on the property and several detached airplane hangars.  
The property is comprised primarily of agriculture land with some woodlands.   
 

 
Property Information: Former PID No. 26-118-24-13-0001 

 Zoning: Rural Residential 
Comprehensive Plan: Rural Residential (2040 Plan – designates part of the property to 
be sewered residential) 
Acreage: 62.60 acres  
 

 

 

 

   



Hilltop Farm – Final Plat Review Page 2 

 

Aerial Photograph of Property 

 

Discussion: 
The applicant is asking the City to consider an application for final plat to allow a 13 lot 
subdivision.  The City initially reviewed the concept plan and approved preliminary plat and 
rezoning of the property in September of 2021, to allow the proposed subdivision.  The applicant 
has now prepared a revised set of plans addressing the majority of comments pertaining to the 
preliminary plat review and provided the City with the proposed final plat.   
 
Proposed Subdivision  
 
The 2030 and 2040 Comprehensive Plan both guide the western portion of this property for RR-
Rural Residential.  The applicant received approval from the City during Preliminary Plat for 13 
lots based on an alternative interpretation of the zoning ordinance density provisions.  The final 
plat proposes 13 lots consistent with the preliminary plat. 
 
The City has continued to review the proposed subdivision of this property with the applicant.  The 
City discussed a couple of key considerations relating to the future development of this property 
and adjacent properties.  The City noted that the Metropolitan Council has identified a potential 
future (beyond 2040) sewer expansion area which encompasses this property (see map below). 

PORTION OF PROPERTY 
PROPOSED TO BE DEVELOPED 



Hilltop Farm – Final Plat Review Page 3 

 

 

 
 

The City has completed a detailed review of the final plat, including storm water, grading, wetlands 
and infrastructure.  The following comments should be considered by the City: 
 

1. The City had considerable discussions relating to access for this development.  The 
applicant is proposing to provide a 33’ wide half right of way for 500’ to the east of 
CSAH 90 to accommodate the future extension of Turner Road along the south border of 
this property.  The applicant is also providing the requested 66’ wide right of way for the 
future extension of Quass Cut-Off along the north property line of the subject property.  
This future road will accommodate a connection to the remainder of the applicant’s 
property to the east.  The City has noted that this will require the realignment of Quass 
Cut-Off at the intersection of CSAH 90.  The applicant needs to include this right of way 
dedication in the final plat.  A revised final plat should provide this dedication. 
 

2. Hennepin County has reviewed the final plat and provided additional comments 
pertaining to the turn lanes, right of way dedication and Quass Cut-Off realignment.  The 



Hilltop Farm – Final Plat Review Page 4 

 

applicant will need to obtain final approval from Hennepin County.  This includes 
approval of the proposed turn lanes (both northbound and southbound turn lanes).  In 
addition, the applicant is proposing to dedicate 50 feet of right of way along County Road 
90.   

 
3. The proposed plan has 13 new single-family lots that would be accessed via a new cul-

de-sac connected to County Road 90 near the intersection of Quass Cut Off and CSAH 
90.  

 
4. The property abuts an industrial property to the north.  The proposed road will provide 

separation between the two land uses; however, the City recommended that the applicant 
provide a berm and landscaping along the north property line of Lot 1.  A six-foot high 
berm has been proposed along the north property line of Lots 1,2 &3, Block 1. 

 
5. There is an existing powerline easement that now runs along the northeast side of the 

property.  This power line and associated easement provides the proposed separation 
between this subdivision and the remaining property to the east.   
 

6. There applicant has prepared a wetland delineation for the property that has been 
reviewed and approved by the City. 

 
7. The applicant has confirmed that all lots meet the minimum of 2.5 acres of upland 

(buildable) area.  In addition, the applicant has confirmed that all lots can accommodate a 
primary and secondary septic site (shown on plans).   

 
8. The minimum lot frontage requirements have been reviewed and found to meet 

applicable requirements.  It should be noted that Lot 11, Block 1 has 200LF of frontage 
on the proposed Gustavus Road which is less than the frontage required for a lot that is 
greater than 5 acres.  This lot also has right of way on the south side of the property 
fronting the future Turner Road on the south side of the property.  The total frontage 
required for this property would be met using the combined frontages. The minimum 
frontage required on a public street for lots is as follows: 

 
2.5 acres – 3.49 acres – 200 LF 
3.5 acres – 4.99 acres – 250 LF 
5.00 acre plus             - 300 LF 

 
9. It is anticipated that the proposed homes would be custom built. 

 
10. The City has completed a more detailed review of the revised grading and stormwater 

plans.  The comments provided by the City’s engineers will need to be reviewed and 
addressed by the applicant.  The City did not identify any significant issues relating to the 
more detailed and technical review.  Please see the engineers review letters attached for 
more information. 
 



Hilltop Farm – Final Plat Review Page 5 

 

11. The City has completed a plat opinion and prepared a development agreement relating to 
the construction of the proposed public improvements.  The applicant will need to make 
revisions to the plat based on the Attorney’s review and opinion. 

 
12. In addition to requiring the long-term maintenance of the storm water conveyance system 

by the homeowner’s association (HOA), the City will establish a storm sewer 
improvement tax district for this development consistent with recent approvals (Hamilton 
Hills and Serenity Hills).  The City is permitted to establish a storm sewer improvement 
tax district to acquire, construct, reconstruct, extend, maintain and otherwise improve 
storm sewer systems and related facilities within the District and to levy a tax on all 
taxable property within the District to finance such activities.  The district boundary 
would directly correspond with the extents of this development and would provide the 
City with the ability to maintain the system in the future if the HOA is no longer solvent.  
The City can establish this district by ordinance following a public hearing on the matter.  
The ordinance has been prepared for formal adoption following the requisite public 
hearing to be held at the Council Meeting. 

 

Park Dedication 

The proposed subdivision is subject to the City’s park dedication requirements.  Based on the 
concept plan discussion, the City is not requesting a trail and or park to be dedicated in this 
development.  Instead, the City will require the standard park dedication as cash in lieu of land.  
The park dedication is broken down as follows:  
 

Park dedication fee $3,500 per lot up to 4.99 acres, plus $750 per acre for each acre over 5. 
 

Park dedication for Lots 1-5 and 7,8,9,10 (less than 5 acres): $31,500 
Park dedication for Lot 6 (6 acres):     $4,250 
Park dedication for Lot 11 (6.3 acres):    $4,475 
Park dedication for Lot 12 (6.8 acres):    $4,850 
Park dedication for Lot 13 (5.2 acres):    $3,650 
           TOTAL     $48,725 
 
The park dedication fee requirement for this development is anticipated to be $48,725.  
 
 
Recommendation: 
City Council is being asked to approve Final Plat and the Development Agreement with the following 
findings and conditions: 
 

1. The proposed Final Plat meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated Chapter V, 
Planning and Land Use Regulations and Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of 
Independence Zoning Ordinance. 



Hilltop Farm – Final Plat Review Page 6 

 

 
2. City Council approval of the Final Plat shall be subject to the following: 

 
a. The Applicant shall make all revisions requested in the staff report, by the Planning 

Commission and City Council.  
 

b. The Applicant shall address all comments and applicable requirements pertaining to 
the water resources and as outlined in the water resources review letter from Hakanson 
Anderson Associates, dated August 26, 2021. 

 
c. The Applicant shall address all comments and applicable requirements made in the 

City Engineer’s review letter dated, August 13, 2021 (Bolton & Menk, Inc.). 
 

d. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable regulations and conditions prescribed 
by Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Organization and receive all 
applicable approvals. 

 
e. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable regulations and conditions prescribed 

by Hennepin County and receive all applicable approvals. 
 

f. The Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City for this 
development. 

 
g. The Applicant shall provide a letter of credit as established by the development 

agreement for all public improvements associated with this development. 
 

h. The Applicant shall consent to the establishment of the storm sewer improvement tax 
district. 
 

i. The Applicant shall enter into a storm water maintenance agreement pertaining to the 
required storm water ponds to be located on the property. 

 
j. The Applicant shall provide the City with copies of applicable HOA agreement and 

covenants. 
 

k. The Applicant shall obtain all necessary City, County, PCA and other regulatory 
agency approval and permits prior to construction. 

 
3. The Applicant shall pay the park dedication fees in accordance with the terms defined in 

the Development Agreement. 
 

4. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the final plat and 
preparation of the development agreement. 

 



Hilltop Farm – Final Plat Review Page 7 

 

5. The Applicant shall record the Final Plat within ninety (90) days of the City Council 
approval of the Final Plat. 

 
 

 
Attachments: 

1. RESOLUTION NO. 22-0315-01 – Considering approval of the final plat. 
2. ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02 – Considering approval of the storm sewer tax improvement district. 
3. Development Agreement 
4. Final Plat/Construction Documents 
5. Attorney’s Plat Opinion 
6. Engineering Review Letters 

 



 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-0315-01 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A FINAL PLAT  
TO BE KNOWN AS HILLTOP PRAIRIE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 

laws of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a Comprehensive Plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance and other official 
controls to assist in implementing the Comprehensive Plan; and  

WHEREAS, Hilltop Farm, Inc. (the “Applicant/Owner”) has submitted a request for a 
final plat for the property located identified by PID No. 26-118-24-13-0001 in the City of 
Independence, MN; and  

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and  

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned RR-Rural Residential; and 

WHEREAS the requested final plat meets all requirements, standards and specifications 
of the City of Independence subdivision and zoning ordinance for Rural Residential Property; 
and 

WHEREAS the City held a public hearing on September 21, 2021 to review the 
application for Preliminary Plat as required, following mailed and published noticed as required 
by law; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 



Hilltop Farm, Inc. for a final plat per the City’s subdivision and zoning regulations with the 
following conditions: 

 
1. The proposed Final Plat meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated 

Chapter V, Planning and Land Use Regulations and Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, 
in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. City Council approval of the Final Plat shall be subject to the following: 
 

a. The Applicant shall make all revisions requested in the staff report, by the 
Planning Commission and City Council.  

 
b. The Applicant shall address all comments and applicable requirements pertaining 

to the water resources and as outlined in the water resources review letter from 
Hakanson Anderson Associates, dated August 26, 2021. 

 
c. The Applicant shall address all comments and applicable requirements made in 

the City Engineer’s review letter dated, August 13, 2021 (Bolton & Menk, Inc.). 
 

d. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable regulations and conditions 
prescribed by Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management Organization and 
receive all applicable approvals. 

 
e. The Applicant shall comply with all applicable regulations and conditions 

prescribed by Hennepin County and receive all applicable approvals. 
 

f. The Applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the City for this 
development. 

 
g. The Applicant shall provide a letter of credit as established by the development 

agreement for all public improvements associated with this development. 
 

h. The Applicant shall consent to the establishment of the storm sewer improvement 
tax district. 
 

i. The Applicant shall enter into a storm water maintenance agreement pertaining to 
the required storm water ponds to be located on the property. 

 
j. The Applicant shall provide prospective buyers with the Letter of Information 

Pertaining to the Hilltop Prairie Subdivision as prepared by the City and attached 
hereto as EXHIBIT B.   

 
k. The Applicant shall provide the City with copies of applicable HOA agreement 

and covenants. 
 

l. The Applicant shall obtain all necessary City, County, PCA and other regulatory 
agency approval and permits prior to construction. 



 
3. The Applicant shall pay the park dedication fees in accordance with the terms defined 

in the Development Agreement. 
 

4. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the final plat 
and preparation of the development agreement. 

 
5. The Applicant shall record the Final Plat within ninety (90) days of the City Council 

approval of the Final Plat. 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 15th day 
of March 2022, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

         
 
 

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description of Property) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT B 
(Letter of Information) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-02 
 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE HILLTOP PRAIRIE 
STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENT TAX DISTRICT 

 
 
THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

Section I. Background: Findings. 
 

1.01. The City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 444.16 – 444.21 (the “Act”) 
to establish a storm sewer improvement tax district (the “District”) to acquire, construct, 
reconstruct, extend, maintain and otherwise improve storm sewer systems and related facilities 
within the District in accordance with the Act and to levy a tax on all taxable property within the 
District to finance such activities. Any real estate acquisition shall be by voluntary conveyance 
or by eminent domain proceedings conducted in accordance with applicable law. 
 

1.02. It is found and determined that it is in the best interests of Independence and its 
storm water management program that the District be established for the property being 
developed as Hilltop Prairie subdivision. The District shall be comprised of the following land 
within Independence legally described as follows: 

 

 
 

And to be platted as Hilltop Prairie, Hennepin County, Minnesota. 
 

Section II. Establishment: Authorizations. 
 

2.01. The Hilltop Prairie Storm Sewer Improvement Tax District is established. 
The city shall have all powers and authority conferred by the Act in the operation and financing 
of the activities of the District. 
  

2.02. The boundaries of the District are as described above. 
 



 
 

2.03. The City Administrator is authorized and directed to file a certified copy of the 
ordinance with the Hennepin County Auditor, the Office of the Hennepin County Recorder. 
 

Section III. This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption and publication and 
shall be recorded with the Hennepin County Auditor, Registrar of Titles and Recorder. 
 

Adopted this 15th day of March 2022, by the Independence City Council. 
 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Marvin Johnson, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN HILLTOP FARM, INC. 

AND THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
 

HILLTOP PRAIRIE 
 

This Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this ___ day of 
________, 2022, by and between the city of Independence, a municipal corporation under the laws 
of Minnesota (the “City”), and Hilltop Farm, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the “Developer”). 
 
 WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, the City Council approved the preliminary and final plat of Hilltop Prairie (the 
“Subdivision”) by Resolution No. 21-0921-01 adopted on September 21, 2022 (“City Approvals”), 
and; 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer is the fee owner of the land platted as Hilltop Prairie as legally 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”), and; 
  

WHEREAS, the City Approvals are contingent upon the Developer entering into a 
development agreement satisfactory to the City, which development agreement will be recorded 
against the Property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based on the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Right to Proceed.  This Agreement is intended to regulate the development of the 
Property and the construction therein of certain public and private improvements.  The Developer 
may not construct public or private improvements or any buildings within the Subdivision until all 
the following conditions precedent have been satisfied: 
 

a) the final plat has been filed with Hennepin County;  
b) this Agreement has been executed by the Developer and the City and filed 

with Hennepin County; 
c) the required Letter of Credit and escrow amount (as hereinafter defined) 

have been received by the City from the Developer;  
d) final engineering and construction plans in digital form have been 

submitted by the Developer and approved by the city engineer; 
e) the Developer has paid the City for all legal, engineering and 

administrative expenses incurred by the City regarding the City Approvals; 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 2 

f) the Developer has responded to all comments provided by the City (city 
engineers, Hennepin County and PSCWMC) and such responses have been 
approved in writing by the city administrator;  

g) the Developer has obtained written approval from the Pioneer Sarah Creek 
Watershed Management Commission and provided evidence of such 
approval to the City; 

h) the Developer has executed the stormwater pond maintenance agreement 
of the form attached hereto as Exhibit B; 

i) the Developer has paid the park dedication fee as per paragraph 8 herein, 
and;  

j) the Developer’s agent has attended a preconstruction meeting with the City 
engineer and staff. 

 
Upon completion or satisfaction of the foregoing conditions precedent, the Developer shall notify 
the City and, upon confirmation of completion, the City shall provide written notice that the 
Developer may proceed. 
 

2. Plans; Improvements.  a) The Developer agrees to develop the Property in 
accordance with the City Approvals, and to construct all improvements in accordance with the 
approved engineering and construction plans (collectively, the “Plans”).  All terms and conditions of 
the City Approvals are hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement.  The Plans may not be 
modified by the Developer without the prior written approval of the City. 
 
 b) In developing the Subdivision in accordance with the Plans, the Developer shall 
make or install at its sole expense the following public and private improvements (collectively, the 
“Subdivision Improvements”):   
 

1. Street and road improvements; 
2. Storm sewer facilities, and; 
3. Stormwater pond facilities and associated grading. 

 
 c) All work performed by or on behalf of the Developer related to construction of the 
Subdivision Improvements shall be restricted to the hours of 7:00 a.m. through 6:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, and 8:00 a.m. through 4:00 p.m. on Saturday.  Construction on homes shall be 
restricted to the hours of 7:00 a.m. through 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. 
through 4:00 p.m. on Saturday and Sunday.  
 

3. Erosion Control.  a)  All construction regarding the Subdivision Improvements 
shall be conducted in a manner designed to control erosion and in compliance with all City 
ordinances and other requirements, including the City’s permit with the Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency regarding municipal separate storm sewer system program dated June 30, 2014.  
Before any portion of the Subdivision is rough graded, an erosion control plan shall be 
implemented by the Developer as approved by the City.  The City may impose reasonable, 
additional erosion control requirements after the City’s initial approval, if the City deems such 
necessary due to a change in conditions.  All areas disturbed by the excavation shall be reseeded 
promptly after the completion of the work in that area unless construction of streets or utilities, 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 3 

buildings or other improvements is anticipated immediately thereafter.  Except as otherwise 
provided in the erosion control plan, seed shall provide a temporary ground cover as rapidly as 
possible.  All seeded areas shall be mulched, and disc anchored as necessary for seed retention.  
The parties recognize that time is of the essence in controlling erosion.   
 

b) If the Developer does not comply with the erosion control plan and schedule or 
supplementary instructions received from the City, the City may take such action as it deems 
reasonably appropriate to control erosion based on the urgency of the situation.  The City agrees 
to provide reasonable notice to the Developer in advance of any proposed action, including 
notice by telephone or email in the case of emergencies, but limited notice by the City when 
conditions so dictate will not affect the Developer’s obligations or the City’s rights hereunder.   

 
c) The Developer agrees to reimburse the City for all expenses it incurs in 

connection with any action it takes to control erosion.  No grading or construction of the 
Subdivision Improvements will be allowed and no building permits will be issued within the 
Subdivision unless the Developer is in full compliance with the erosion control requirements.  
The erosion control measures specified in the Plans or otherwise required within the Subdivision 
shall be binding on the Developer and its successors and assigns. 
 

4. Site Grading; Haul Routes.  a) In order to construct the Subdivision 
Improvements and otherwise prepare the Property for development, it will be necessary for the 
Developer to grade the Property.  All grading must be done in compliance with this Agreement, 
the Plans and with all requirements of the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency regarding 
contaminated soils.  The City may withhold issuance of a building permit for the Subdivision 
until the approved certified grading plan is on file with the City and all erosion control measures 
are in place as determined by the City.  Within 30 days after completion of the grading, the 
Developer shall provide the City with an “as constructed” grading plan and a certification by a 
registered land surveyor or engineer. 
 

b) The Developer agrees that any fill material which must be brought to or removed 
from the Subdivision while grading the site or during construction of the Subdivision 
Improvements or any buildings located within the Subdivision will be transported using the haul 
routes established by the City.  
 

5. Construction of Subdivision Improvements.  a)  All Subdivision Improvements 
shall be installed in accordance with the Plans, the City Approvals, the City’s subdivision 
regulations, the City’s engineering standards and the requirements of the City engineer.  The 
Developer shall submit plans and specifications for the Subdivision Improvements.  The 
Developer shall obtain any necessary permits from any other agency having jurisdiction before 
proceeding with construction.  The City shall inspect the Subdivision Improvements at the 
Developer’s expense.  The Developer, its contractors and subcontractors, shall follow all 
instructions received from the City’s inspectors.  Within 45 days after the completion of the 
Subdivision Improvements, the Developer shall supply the City with a complete set of 
reproducible “as constructed” plans and three complete sets of paper “as constructed” plans, each 
prepared in accordance with City standards and also electronic versions of said plans in 
AutoCADD and shapefile formats based on Hennepin County coordinates.  Iron monuments 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 4 

must be installed in accordance with state law.  The Developer’s surveyor shall submit a written 
notice to the City certifying that the monuments have been installed.  All Subdivision 
Improvements required by this Agreement shall be completed by no later than December 15, 
2022, except as specifically noted otherwise in this Agreement.   
 

b) The Developer agrees to require its contractor to provide to the City a warranty 
bond against defects in labor and materials for all elements of the Subdivision Improvements for 
a period of two years from the date of their acceptance by the City.  During such period, the 
Developer agrees to repair or replace any Subdivision Improvement, or any portion or element 
thereof, which shows signs of failure, normal wear and tear excepted.  A decision regarding 
whether a Subdivision Improvement shows signs of failure shall be made by the City in the 
exercise of its reasonable judgment.  If the Developer fails to repair or replace a defective 
Subdivision Improvement during the warranty period, the City may repair or replace the 
defective portion and may use the Letter of Credit (as hereinafter defined) to reimburse itself for 
such costs.  The Developer agrees to reimburse the City fully for the cost of all Subdivision 
Improvement repair or replacement if the cost thereof exceeds the remaining amount of the 
Letter of Credit.  Such reimbursement must be made within 45 days of the date upon which the 
City notifies the Developer of the cost due under this paragraph.  The Developer hereby agrees to 
permit the City to specially assess any unreimbursed costs against any lots in the Subdivision 
which have not been sold to home buyers if the Developer fails to make required payments to the 
City.  The Developer, on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, acknowledges the benefit 
to the lots within the Subdivision of the repair or replacement of the Subdivision Improvements 
and hereby consents to such assessment and waives the right to a hearing or notice of hearing or 
any appeal thereon under Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429. 
 

c) If building permits are issued prior to the completion and acceptance of all 
Subdivision Improvements serving any lot, the Developer assumes all liability and costs 
resulting in delays in completion of the Subdivision Improvements and damage to the 
Subdivision Improvements caused by the City, the Developer, its contractors, subcontractors, 
materialmen, employees, agents, or third parties. 

 
6. Stormwater Pond Improvements.  a)  The Developer agrees to complete all 

elements of the on-site stormwater facilities, including but not limited to ponds, infiltration 
basins and accompanying structures, in accordance with the Plans and in compliance with all 
City requirements regarding such improvements. The stormwater facilities serving the Subdivision 
will remain private and will be maintained by the Developer, or successor owners, at its sole 
expense.  The City does not intend to accept the stormwater facilities as public and does not intend 
to maintain them.  In order to meet the requirements of the Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed 
Management Commission, the Developer agrees to enter into a Stormwater Pond Maintenance 
Agreement with the City in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.  The purpose of the Stormwater 
Pond Maintenance Agreement is to ensure that the Developer and ultimately the homeowners 
association maintain the stormwater facilities within the Subdivision and to give the City the right 
but not the obligation to do so if the Developer fails in its obligations.  The Stormwater Pond 
Maintenance Agreement will be recorded against the Property and will run with the land.  The 
Developer acknowledges that i) the on-site storm water improvements will not be accepted by 
the City; ii) the City does not plan to maintain or pay for maintenance, repair or replacement of 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 5 

the storm sewer improvements and that the Developer and ultimately the lot owners will have 
primary responsibility for such work; iii)  the City has the right but not the obligation to perform 
necessary work upon the failure or refusal by the Developer or the lot owners to do so; and iv) if 
the City performs any work on the storm water improvements, the City intends to recover its 
costs through one of the means available to it, including the right to specially assess the cost of 
such work against all of the lots within the Subdivision. 
 

b) The Developer agrees to inform purchasers of lots within the Subdivision that i) 
the City does not plan to maintain or pay for maintenance, repair or replacement of the storm 
water improvements and that the lot owners will have primarily responsibility for such work; ii)  
the City has the right but not the obligation to perform necessary work upon the failure or refusal 
by the lot owners to do so; and iii) if the City performs any work on the storm water 
improvements, the City intends to recover the cost of such work against the lots within the 
Subdivision through one of the means available to it, including the right to specially assess the 
cost of the work against all the lots within the Subdivision. 
 

c) The Developer acknowledges that the City has established a storm sewer 
improvement tax district which includes all of the Property.  The district was established pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, sections 444.16 to 444.21 and authorizes the City to acquire, construct, 
reconstruct, extend, maintain, and otherwise improve storm sewer systems and related 
improvements within the Property if such work becomes necessary in the opinion of the City.  In 
recognition of this possibility, the Developer agrees to provide prospective lot purchasers with a 
disclosure statement regarding the existence of the storm sewer improvement tax district and the 
fact that a tax could be imposed on the lots within the Subdivision if the City is required to repair or 
maintain the storm sewer systems and related improvements.  The wording of the disclosure 
statement must be approved by the City for use in connection with the sale of lots in the Subdivision 
prior to its distribution or use by the Developer or to the marketing of any of the lots.   
 

7. Improvement Security.  a)  In order to ensure completion of the Subdivision 
Improvements required under this Agreement and satisfaction of all fees due to the City, the 
Developer agrees to deliver to the City prior to beginning any construction or work within the 
Subdivision a letter of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) in the amount of $ 966,285.00, which 
represents 150 percent of the estimated cost of the Subdivision Improvements as specified in the 
Plans.  This amount represents the maximum risk exposure for the City, based on the anticipated 
sequence of construction and the estimate of cost of each element of the Subdivision 
Improvements, rather than the aggregate cost of all required Subdivision Improvements.  The 
Letter of Credit shall be delivered to the City prior to beginning any work on the Subdivision 
Improvements and shall renew automatically thereafter until released by the City.  The estimated 
cost of the work covered by the Letter of Credit is itemized on Exhibit C attached hereto.  The 
Letter of Credit shall be issued by a bank determined by the City to be solvent and creditworthy 
and shall be in a form acceptable to the City.  The Letter of Credit shall allow the City to draw 
upon the instrument, in whole or part, in order to complete construction of any or all of the 
Subdivision Improvements and other specified work within the Subdivision and to pay any fees 
or costs due to the City by the Developer.   
 

b) The City agrees to return a portion of the Letter of Credit, in an amount to be 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 6 

determined solely by the City, upon substantial completion of any significant portion of the 
covered Subdivision Improvements, delivery of the required warranty bond to the City, and 
satisfaction of all of the Developer’s financial obligations to the City.  The Letter of Credit may 
also be used as security for additional elements of the Subdivision Improvements.  Prior to 
releasing any portion of the Letter of Credit, the City shall first be satisfied regarding the quality 
and completeness of the work and that the Developer has taken such steps as may be necessary 
to ensure that no liens will attach to the land within the Subdivision.  The remaining balance of 
the Letter of Credit shall be released in full and returned to the Developer following installation 
of the final wear course of bituminous on the streets and after satisfaction of all the Developer’s 
financial obligations to the City under this Agreement.  

 
c) It is the intention of the parties that the City at all times have available to it an 

Letter of Credit in an amount adequate to ensure completion of all elements of the Subdivision 
Improvements and other obligations of the Developer under this Agreement, including fees or 
costs due to the City by the Developer.  To that end and notwithstanding anything herein to the 
contrary, all requests by the Developer for a reduction or release of the Letter of Credit shall be 
evaluated by the City in light of that principle. 
 

8. Park Dedication Requirements.  The Developer shall pay a cash-in-lieu park 
dedication fee of Forty-eight Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-five and 00/100 Dollars 
($48,725.00) for the Subdivision. 

 
9. [Intentionally Omitted]. 
 
10. Responsibility for Costs; Deposit for Construction Inspection.  a) The Developer 

agrees to pay to the City an administrative fee in the amount necessary to reimburse the City for 
its reasonable costs and expenses in reviewing the final plat and the drafting and negotiation of this 
Agreement.  The Developer agrees to reimburse the City in full for such reasonable costs within 45 
days after notice in writing by the City.  The Developer agrees to reimburse the City for the 
reasonable cost incurred in the enforcement of any provision of this Agreement, including 
reasonable engineering and attorneys’ fees.   
 

b) The Developer shall also pay a fee for City construction observation and 
administration relating to construction of the Subdivision Improvements.  Construction 
observation shall include inspection of all the Subdivision Improvements. In order to reimburse 
the City for the administrative fee and the reasonable cost of inspection of the Subdivision 
Improvements, the Developer shall deposit an additional $10,000.00 with the City, which shall 
receive and hold such funds solely under the terms of this Agreement.  The City shall reimburse 
itself for expenses from the deposit and will provide the Developer with a copy of any invoice 
from the City engineer or evidence of other cost or expense prior to deducting such funds from 
the deposit.  If any funds held exceed the amount necessary to reimburse the City for its costs 
under this paragraph, such funds shall be returned to Developer without interest.  If it appears 
that the actual costs incurred will exceed the estimate, Developer and City shall review the costs 
required to complete the project and the Developer shall deposit additional sums with the City. 
 

11. Developer’s Default.  In the event of default by the Developer as to construction or 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 7 

repair of any of the Subdivision Improvements or any other work or undertaking required by this 
Agreement, the City may, at its option, perform the work and the Developer shall promptly 
reimburse the City for any expense incurred by the City.  This Agreement is a license for the 
City to act, and it shall not be necessary for the City to seek an order from any court for 
permission to enter the Subdivision for such purposes.  If the City does any such work, the City 
may, in addition to its other remedies, levy special assessments against the land within the 
Subdivision to recover the costs thereof.  For this purpose, the Developer, for itself and its 
successors and assigns, expressly waives any and all procedural and substantive objections to the 
special assessments, including but not limited to, hearing requirements and any claim that the 
assessments exceed the benefit to the land so assessed.  The Developer, for itself and its 
successors and assigns, also waives any appeal rights otherwise available pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes, section 429.081. 
 

12. Insurance.  The Developer agrees to take out and maintain or cause to be taken 
out and maintained until six months after the City has accepted the Subdivision Improvements, 
public liability and property damage insurance covering personal injury, including death, and 
claims for property damage which may arise out of Developer’s work or the work of its 
contractors or subcontractors.  Liability limits shall not be less than $500,000 when the claim is 
one for death by wrongful act or omission or for any other claim and $1,500,000 for any number 
of claims arising out of a single occurrence.  The City shall be named as an additional insured on 
the policy.  The certificate of insurance shall provide that the City must be given the same 
advance written notice of the cancellation of the insurance as is afforded to the Developer. 
 

13. Floodplain Regulations.  No structures, including fences and accessory structures, 
may be constructed within the Subdivision below the regulatory flood protection elevation.  The 
Developer must comply with the requirements of the City with regard to flood protection.   
 

14. No Building Permits Approved; Certificates of Occupancy.  a)  The City 
Approvals do not include approval of a building permit for any structures within the Subdivision.  
The Developer must submit and the City must approve building plans prior to an application for 
a building permit for a structure on any lot within the Subdivision.  The Developer or the parties 
applying for the building permits shall be responsible for payment of the customary fees 
associated with the building permits and other deferred fees as specified in this Agreement. 
 

b) No certificate of occupancy shall be issued for any home constructed in the 
Subdivision unless prior thereto the lot has been graded, the driveway has been installed, the 
home is connected to the municipal sanitary sewer system and such connection has been 
approved by the City, and an as built survey of the lot has been submitted and approved by the 
City.  In cases in which seasonal weather conditions make compliance with these conditions 
impossible, the City may accept an escrow of sufficient amount to ensure completion of the work 
during the following construction season. 
 

15. Clean up and Dust Control.  The Developer shall daily clean dirt and debris from 
streets adjoining the Subdivision resulting from construction work by the Developer, its 
contractors, agents or assigns.  The Developer shall provide dust control to the satisfaction of the 
City’s engineer throughout construction within the Subdivision. 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 8 

 
16. Compliance with Laws.  The Developer agrees to comply with all laws, ordinances, 

regulations and directives of the state of Minnesota and the City applicable to the Subdivision.  This 
Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of Minnesota.  Breach of the terms of this 
Agreement by the Developer shall be grounds for denial of building permits for the Subdivision. 
 

17. Agreement Runs with the Land.  This Agreement shall run with the Property and 
shall be recorded against the title thereto and shall bind and inure to the benefit of the City and 
the Developer and their successors and assigns.  The Developer’s successor in title may be 
responsible for obligations under this Agreement as required by the City.  The Developer 
warrants that there are no unrecorded encumbrances or interests relating to the Property.  The 
Developer agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless for any breach of the foregoing 
covenants.   
 

18. Indemnification.  The Developer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the City and 
its officers, employees, and agents harmless from claims made by it and third parties for 
damages sustained or costs incurred resulting from approval of the final plat and the other City 
Approvals.  The Developer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its officers, 
employees, and agents harmless for all costs, damages, or expenses which the City may pay or 
incur in consequence of such claims, including attorneys’ fees, except matters involving acts of 
gross negligence by the City.   
 

19. Assignment.  The Developer may not assign this Agreement or its rights or 
obligations hereunder without the prior written permission of the City, which consent shall not 
be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or denied.   
 

20. Notices.  Any notice or correspondence to be given under this Agreement shall be 
deemed to be given if delivered personally or sent by United States certified or registered mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested: 
 

a)  as to Developer:   __________________________ 
__________________________ 
__________________________ 

       
 b) as to City:   City of Independence 
      1920 County Road 90 
      Independence, MN 55359-9448 

Attn:  City Administrator 
 

with a copy to:   Robert Vose 
      Kennedy & Graven, Chartered 
      150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 
      Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 9 

or at such other address as any party may from time to time notify the others in writing in 
accordance with this paragraph.  The Developer shall notify the City if there is any change in its 
name or address. 
 

21. Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, 
illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall pertain only to 
such section and shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement. 
 

22. Non-waiver.  Each right, power or remedy conferred upon the City by this 
Agreement is cumulative and in addition to every other right, power or remedy, express or 
implied, now or hereafter arising, or available to the City at law or in equity, or under any other 
agreement.  Each and every right, power and remedy herein set forth or otherwise so existing 
may be exercised from time to time as often and in such order as may be deemed expedient by 
the City and shall not be a waiver of the right to exercise at any time thereafter any other right, 
power or remedy.  If either party waives in writing any default or nonperformance by the other 
party, such waiver shall be deemed to apply only to such event and shall not waive any other prior 
or subsequent default. 
 

23. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 
 
 

[Signature pages to follow] 
 
 
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 10 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on 
the day and year first above written. 
 
       CITY OF INDEPENDENCE  

 
      By: __________________________________ 

       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
 

      By: __________________________________ 
       Mark Kaltsas 

       City Administrator 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ________, 2022, by 
Marvin Johnson and Mark Kaltsas, the Mayor and City Administrator, respectively, of the city of 
Independence, a Minnesota municipal corporation, on behalf of the municipal corporation. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public 

 
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 11 

 
Developer  

 
__________________________________ 

 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 2022, 
by                                       , the                                    for Hilltop Farm, Inc. on behalf of the 
corporation. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public  
 
 
This instrument drafted by: 
 
Kennedy & Graven, Chartered (RJV) 
150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 



A-1 
DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 

EXHIBIT A TO 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
Legal Description of the Property 

 
The land subject to this Development Agreement is located in Hennepin County, Minnesota and is 
legally described as follows: 
 

Lots 1 through 13, Block 1, Hilltop Prairie, according to the recorded plat thereof.   



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-1 

 
EXHIBIT B TO 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

FORM OF 
STORMWATER POND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the ____ day of ___________, 
2022, by and between the city of Independence, a Minnesota municipal corporation (the “City”), 
and Hilltop Farm, Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the “Developer”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer owns certain real property located in Hennepin County, 
Minnesota, legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer has granted to the City drainage and utility easements over 
portions of the Property through dedication on the plat of Hilltop Prairie; and 
 
 WHEREAS, those portions of the Property subject to the drainage and utility easements 
are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Easement Areas”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer intends to construct within the Easement Areas certain 
stormwater facilities (the “Stormwater Improvements”) for the benefit of the Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, by a separate development agreement (the “Development Agreement”), the 

City and the Developer have entered into an agreement for the construction and maintenance of 
the Stormwater Improvements; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City requires permanent provisions for handling of storm runoff, 
including terms and conditions for operation and maintenance of all Stormwater Improvements, 
and requires such provisions to be set forth in an agreement to be recorded against the Property; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and the Developer intend to comply with certain conditions, 
including entering into a maintenance agreement regarding the Stormwater Improvements; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants of the parties set forth 
herein and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Maintenance of the Stormwater Improvements.  The Developer and its successors 
or assigns as fee owners of the Property shall be responsible for maintaining the Stormwater 
Improvements and for observing all drainage laws governing the operation and maintenance of 
the Stormwater Improvements.  The Developer shall provide the City with a schedule acceptable 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-2 

to the City for the periodic inspection of the Stormwater Improvements by the Developer.  The 
Developer shall make all such scheduled inspections, keep record of all inspections and 
maintenance activities, and submit such records annually to the City.  The cost of all inspections 
and maintenance, including skimming and cleaning of the Stormwater Improvements, shall be 
the obligation of the Developer and its successors or assigns as the fee owner of the Property.   
 

2. City’s Maintenance Rights.  The City may maintain the Stormwater 
Improvements, as provided in this paragraph, if the City reasonably believes that the Developer 
or its successors or assigns has failed to maintain the Stormwater Improvements in accordance 
with applicable drainage laws and other requirements and such failure continues for 30 days after 
the City gives the Developer written notice of such failure or, if such tasks cannot be completed 
within 30 days, after such time period as may be reasonably required to complete the required 
tasks provided that Developer is making a good faith effort to complete said task.  The City's 
notice shall specifically state which maintenance tasks are to be performed. If Developer does 
not complete the maintenance tasks within the required time period after such notice is given by 
the City, the City shall have the right to enter upon the Easement Area to perform such 
maintenance tasks.  In such case, the City shall send an invoice of its reasonable maintenance 
costs to the Developer or its successors or assigns, which shall include all reasonable staff time, 
engineering and legal and other reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the City.  If the 
Developer or its assigns fails to reimburse the City for its costs and expenses in maintaining the 
Stormwater Improvements within 30 days of receipt of an invoice for such costs, the City shall 
have the right to assess the full cost thereof against the Property.  The Developer, on behalf of 
itself and its successor and assigns, acknowledges that the maintenance work performed by the 
City regarding the Stormwater Improvements benefits the Property in an amount which exceeds 
the assessment and hereby waives any right to hearing or notice and the right to appeal the 
assessments otherwise provided by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, in the event of an emergency, as determined by the city engineer, the 30-day notice 
requirement to the Developer for failure to perform maintenance tasks shall be and hereby is 
waived in its entirety by the Developer, and the Developer shall reimburse the City and be 
subject to assessment for any expense so incurred by the City in the same manner as if written 
notice as described above has been given. 
 

3. Hold Harmless.  The Developer hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the City and its agents and employees against any and all claims, demands, losses, 
damages, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of or resulting from the 
Developer's, or the Developer's agents’ or employees’ negligent or intentional acts, or any 
violation of any safety law, regulation or code in the performance of this Agreement, without 
regard to any inspection or review made or not made by the City, its agents or employees or 
failure by the City, its agents or employees to take any other prudent precautions.  In the event 
the City, upon the failure of the Developer to comply with any conditions of this Agreement, 
performs said conditions pursuant to its authority in this Agreement, the Developer shall 
indemnify and hold harmless the City, its employees, agents and representatives for its own 
negligent acts in the performance of the Developer's required work under this Agreement, but 
this indemnification shall not extend to intentional or grossly negligent acts of the City, its 
employees, agents and representatives. 
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-3 

4.  Costs of Enforcement.  The Developer agrees to reimburse the City for all costs 
prudently incurred by the City in the enforcement of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, 
including court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 
5. Rights Not Exclusive.  No right of the City under this Agreement shall be deemed 

to be exclusive and the City shall retain all rights and powers it may have under Minnesota 
Statutes, sections 444.16 to 444.21 to acquire, construct, reconstruct, extend, maintain and 
otherwise improve the Stormwater Improvements, provided, however, that the City shall not 
exercise such rights unless the Developer or its successors or assigns does not timely cure a 
failure to maintain the Stormwater Improvements after receipt of written notice as provided in 
paragraph 2 above. 

 
6.  Notice.  All notices required under this Agreement shall either be personally 

delivered or be sent by United States certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, and addressed 
as follows: 

 
a)  as to Developer:  ________________________________ 

________________________________ 
________________________________ 

 
 b) as to City:   City of Independence 
      1920 County Road 90 
      Independence, MN  55359-9448 

Attn:  City Administrator 
 
  with a copy to:   Robert Vose 

Kennedy & Graven, Chartered 
      150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 
      Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 
or at such other address as any party may from time to time notify the others in writing in 
accordance with this paragraph. 
 

7.  Successors.  All duties and obligations of Developer under this Agreement shall 
also be duties and obligations of Developer's successors and assigns.  The terms and conditions 
of this Agreement shall run with the Property. 
 

8.  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be binding and effective as of the date first 
written above. 

 
9. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of Minnesota. 
 



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-4 

 
 

Developer 
 
      ____________________________________ 
       
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 2022, 
by                                       , the                                    for Hilltop Farm, Inc. on behalf of the 
corporation. 
       ____________________________________ 

       Notary Public  



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 B-5 

 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
 
 

By:         
Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
 
 

By:         
Mark Kaltsas 
City Administrator 

 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
    )  ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 
2022, by Marvin Johnson and Mark Kaltsas, the Mayor and the City Administrator, respectively, 
of the city of Independence, a Minnesota municipal corporation, on behalf of the municipal 
corporation. 
 
 
 
             
       Notary Public 
 
 
This instrument drafted by: 
 
Kennedy & Graven, Chartered (RJV) 
150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 
 
 



B-A-1 
DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 

 
EXHIBIT A TO 

STORMWATER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 
The land subject to this Stormwater Maintenance Agreement is located in Hennepin County, 
Minnesota and is legally described as follows: 
 

Lots 1 through 13, Block 1, Hilltop Prairie, according to the recorded plat thereof.   



DOCSOPEN\ND115\159\672118.v2-8/28/20 C-1 

EXHIBIT C TO  
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
Subdivision Improvement Cost Estimate  

 
 

[To be inserted] 
 
 









1 2

3

4

5

89
10

11

12

6
7

13

BLOCK    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   1

C
O

U
N

TY
   

R
O

AD
   

90 GUSTAVUS   DRIVE

TURNER       ROAD

QUAAS                  CUT-OFF            ROAD

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

WETLAND BUFFER & TREE
PRESERVATION PLAN

HILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

20-0476

2 13

N

Feet
0 100 200

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________



1 2

3

4

5

89
10

11

12

6
7

13

BLOCK    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   1

C
O

U
N

TY
   

R
O

AD
   

90 GUSTAVUS   DRIVE

TURNER       ROAD

QUAAS                  CUT-OFF            ROAD

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

GRADING PLANHILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

20-0476

3 13

N

Feet
0 100 200

SILT FENCE DETAIL

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

SWPPP - PROJECT INFORMATION

13 12-16-214

¹  

²  

³ 

¹ ² ³

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________

HILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

20-0476





1 2

3

4

5

89
10

11

12

6
7

13

BLOCK    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   1

C
O

U
N

TY
   

R
O

AD
   

90 GUSTAVUS   DRIVE

TURNER       ROAD

QUAAS                  CUT-OFF            ROAD

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

STORMWATER POLLUTION
PREVENTION PLAN

HILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

20-0476

6 13

N

Feet
0 100 200

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________



1 2

10

11

12

13

BL
O

CK
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

CO
UN

TY
   

RO
AD

   
90

GUSTAVUS

DRIVE

QUAAS

CUTOFF

ROAD

QUAASCUT-OFFROAD

GUSTAVUS DRIVE
STA 0+00 TO STA 12+00

DRIVE
GUSTAVUS

QUAAS

CUT-OFF

ROAD

N

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN
 GUSTAVUS DRIVE (STA 0+00 TO STA 12+00)

HILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

20-0476

7 13

Feet
0 50 100

TYPICAL ROAD SECTION

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________

N

GRASS ISLAND DETAIL



2

3 4
5

89

10

11

6

7

BL
O

CK
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

GUSTAVUS
DRIVE

 GUSTAVUS DRIVE
STA 12+00 TO STA 24+00

N

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

HILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

20-0476

8 13

Feet
0 50 100

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________

STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN
GUSTAVUS DRIVE (STA 12+00 TO STA 24+00)



13

C
O

U
N

TY
   

R
O

AD
   

90

GUSTAVUS DRIVE

QUAAS CUT-OFF
ROAD

QUAAS CUT-OFF ROAD
ROAD REALIGNMENT

N

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

STREET & STORM SEWER PLAN
 QUAAS CUT-OFF ROAD REALIGNMENT

HILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

20-0476

9 13

Feet
0 50 100

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________



COUNTY   ROAD   90

G
U

ST
AV

U
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 D
R

IV
E

Q
U

AA
S

C
U

T-
O

FF
R

O
AD

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

TURN LANE PLAN (NORTH) 20-0476

10 13

N

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________

Feet
0 40 80

HILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN



12

13

G
U

ST
AV

U
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 D
R

IV
E

Q
U

AA
S

C
U

T-
O

FF
R

O
AD

COUNTY   ROAD   90

SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

TURN LANE PLAN (SOUTH) 20-0476

11 13

N

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________

HILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

Feet
0 40 80



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

DETAILSHILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

20-0476

12 13

TYPICAL ROAD SECTION

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________



SHEET NO.          OF         SHEETS

REV. NO.     DATE          BY                          DESCRIPTION DESIGNED    DRAWN

CHECKED
DATE:

PROJECT NO:

Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc.
SSOCIATES

9 West Division Street
Buffalo, MN 55313
(763)682-4727
Fax: (763)682-3522

www.ottoassociates.com

12-16-21

DETAILSHILLTOP PRAIRIE
HILLTOP FARM, INC.
MAPLE PLAIN, MN

20-0476

13 13

FLOW

OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE - POND #2

OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE - POND #4

I hereby certify that this survey, plan, or report was prepared by my
or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Land
Surveyor under the laws of the State of Minnesota.

__________________________________________________
Paul E. Otto
License #40062                 Date:_________________________

OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE - POND #1

TYPICAL BERM CROSS SECTION



DOCSOPEN\ND115\164\782548.v3-3/1/22 

 

Kennedy  
 
 

470 U.S. Bank Plaza 
200 South Sixth Street 
Minneapolis MN 55402-1458 
 

(612) 337-9300 telephone 
(612) 337-9310 fax 
http://www.kennedy-graven.com 
 

Affirmative Action, Equal Opportunity Employer 

  

Graven  

C H A R T E R E D  

  
 ROBERT J.V. VOSE 
 Attorney at Law 
 Direct Dial (612) 337-9275 
 Email: rvose@kennedy-graven.com 
 

March 1, 2022 
VIA E-MAIL ONLY 

Mark Kaltsas 
City Administrator 
City of Independence 
1920 County Road 90 
Independence, MN 55359 
 
RE: Plat Opinion for HILLTOP PRAIRIE 

Our File ND115-164 
 
Dear Mr. Kaltsas: 
 
At your request and on behalf of the City of Independence (the “City”), I have reviewed the title 
commitment issued by CHB Title, LLC, as the issuing agent for Old Republic National Title 
Insurance Company with an effective date of January 18, 2022 (the “Commitment”).  I have 
also reviewed a plat drawing prepared by Paul E. Otto, at Otto Associates, Engineers & Land 
Surveyors, Inc., titled HILLTOP PRAIRIE (the “Plat”).  
 
The Commitment purports to cover the following legal descriptions:  
 

That part of the South Half of the Northwest Quarter and the South Half of the 
Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 118, Range 24, Hennepin County, 
Minnesota, lying Southwesterly of the following described line: 
 
Commencing at the Southwest corner of said South Half of the Northwest 
Quarter; thence on an assumed bearing of South 88 degrees 55 minutes 11 
seconds East, along the South line of the South Half of the Northwest Quarter and 
the South Half of the Northeast Quarter, a distance of 2812.88 feet to the point of 
beginning of said line; thence North 48 degrees 11 minutes 29 seconds West, a 
distance of 2033.37 feet to the North line of said South Half of the Northwest 
Quarter and said line there terminating. 
 
Abstract Property. 
 

(the “Property”) 
 
 

& 



Mr. Mark Kaltsas 
March 1, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

DOCSOPEN\ND115\164\782548.v3-3/1/22 

Based on my review of the Commitment and the Plat, I have the following comments relative to 
the proposed Plat:  
 
1. Plat Execution.  The names and signatures of the following parties in interest must 

appear on the Plat:  
 
a. The fee owner, as identified by the Commitment: Hilltop Farm, Inc., a Minnesota 

corporation. 
 

The Plat does not indicate a fee owner.  We must receive a proposed final Plat 
with this information.  The Commitment does not set out a requirement for a 
conveyance of interest by Hilltop Farm, Inc.  If this changes between the date of 
this letter and the recording of the Plat, then Hilltop Farm, Inc. must sign the 
Plat; otherwise the new fee owner must sign the Plat, with the signature block 
therein revised.  I require review of this conveyance instrument. 
 

b. The mortgagee, as identified by the Commitment: AgStar Financial Services, 
FLCA.   

 
 In lieu of signing the Plat, a consent to plat may be signed by the mortgagee or a 
 satisfaction or release of mortgage may be provided, as indicated in 3.g. below.   

 
If any new mortgages are executed on behalf of the current fee owner and tied to 
the Property in anticipation of the development (and prior to the recording of the 
Plat), the mortgagee must either sign the plat or execute and record a consent to 
plat.  

 
2. Plat Corrections.  

 
a.  That part of the South Half of the Northwest Quarter and the South Half of   

the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 118, Range 24, Hennepin 
County, Minnesota, lying Southwesterly of the following described line: 

 
Commencing at the Southwest corner of said South Half of the Northwest 
Quarter; thence on an assumed bearing of South 88 degrees 55 minutes 11 
seconds East, along the South line of the South Half of the Northwest 
Quarter and the South Half of the Northeast Quarter, a distance of 2812.88 
feet to the point of beginning of said line; thence North 48 degrees 11 
minutes 29 seconds West, a distance of 2033.37 feet to the North line of 
said South Half of the Northwest Quarter and said line there terminating. 

 
Note that the Plat shows the bearing coordinate as “...South 88 degree 55 
minutes 11 seconds East...,” when it should show as “...South 88 
degrees...”  
 
 



Mr. Mark Kaltsas 
March 1, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

DOCSOPEN\ND115\164\782548.v3-3/1/22 

3. Title Commitment Exceptions. 
 
a. (Item 9) Terms and conditions of Easement for electric transmission line purposes, 

in favor of Northern States Power Company, as created in document filed May 27, 
1954, as Document No. 2876225. This easement given by Hennepin County, grants 
unto Northern States Power Company the right to construct, operate, and maintain 
a wooden pole “H” frame electric transmission line through, over, and across 
lands situated in the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 26, 
Township 118 North, Range 24 West, which appears to reside within and is 
marked on the plat as “approximate powerline easement.” The City and the 
Developer should review the location of this easement to determine if the planned 
public improvements interfere with the easement or if the easement should be 
terminated.  
   

b. (Item 10) Terms and conditions of Easement for electric transmission line 
purposes, in favor of Northern States Power Company, as created in document 
filed August 13, 1954, as Document No. 2891150. This easement given by 
Hennepin County, grants unto Northern States Power Company the right to 
construct, operate, and maintain a wooden pole “H” frame electric transmission 
line through, over, and across lands situated in the Southwest Quarter of the 
Northeast Quarter (except the East half thereof) and the Southeast Quarter of the 
Northwest Quarter of Section 26, Township 118 North, Range 24 West, part of 
which appears to reside within and is marked on the plat as “approximate 
powerline easement.” The City and the Developer should review the location of 
this easement to determine if the planned public improvements interfere with the 
easement or if the easement should be terminated.  
 

c. (Item 11) Subject to Hennepin County Highway No. 90, Plat 25, filed as 
Document no. 4143000 and as laid out and traveled.   A portion of this highway 
abuts with and traverses the Plat along its western boundary within the Southwest 
Quarter of the Northwest Quarter and is marked on the Plat.  No further action is 
required except as per number 6. below. 
 

d.       (Item 12) Terms and conditions of Resolution No. 21-0921-01 A Resolution  
   Approving a Minor Subdivision, filed September 23, 2021, as Document No.  
   11021871. This resolution approves the minor subdivision application of Hilltop  
   Farm, Inc., further described by PID #26-118-24-13-0001,for lands residing within 
   the Plat (part of the South Half of the Northwest Quarter and the South Half of the 
   Northeast Quarter) to allow a split of the property.  No further action is required. 

 
e. (Item 13) Terms and conditions of Resolution No. 21-0921-02 A Resolution 

Granting Approval of a Preliminary Plat to be known as Hilltop Prairie, filed 
September 23, 2021, as Document No. 11021872.  No further action is required. 

 
f. (Item 14) A portion of the property contains wetlands which may be subject to 

federal, state, or local regulation. The right to use or improve these wetlands is 



Mr. Mark Kaltsas 
March 1, 2022 
Page 4 
 
 

DOCSOPEN\ND115\164\782548.v3-3/1/22 

excepted herein.  The wetlands, if present, are not clearly marked on the Plat, 
except to note a pond residing within Lot 10, Block 1 of Hilltop Prairie. (See also 
number 7. below) 

 
g. Secure and record a Release or Satisfaction of the following Open-End Mortgage: 

 Dated November 14, 2006 
 Filed December 7, 2006 

Document No. 8904325 
Amount: $702,500.00 
Executed by: Hilltop Farm Inc., a Minnesota corporation 

 To Mortgagee: AgStar Financial Services, FLCA. 
 
 Amended by Amendment to Open-End Mortgage, filed October 15, 2008, as 
 Document No. 9194121. Supplemented by Supplement to Open-End Mortgage, 
 filed October 15, 2008, as Document No. 9194122. 
 
 In lieu of signing the Plat, a consent to plat may be signed by the mortgagee or a 
 satisfaction or release of mortgage may be provided. (See also 1.b. above) 

 
4. Property taxes and assessments.  All real estate taxes payable in the year the Plat is 

recorded (including delinquent taxes and any deferred Green Acres taxes) must be paid 
prior to recording the Plat.  Any special assessments against any part of the Property can 
be reapportioned among the new lots as provided in Minnesota Statutes Section 
429.071(3).  
 
Property Identification No.  26-118-24-13-0001. (Non-Homestead) 
Real estate taxes payable in 2021 are $5,019.68 and are paid. 
Base tax $5,019.68. 
Note: There are no delinquent taxes of record. 
Note: The subject property has been assessed under the Green Acres law (Minnesota 
Statute 273.111, as amended) and is subject to reassessment.  Please direct inquiries for 
reassessment figures to the County Auditor’s Office. 
 
The Commitment does not indicate whether special assessment searches have been 
ordered.  Special assessment searches must be completed, and I must be provided with 
the results of those searches.  Additionally, when the Commitment is revised, 2022 
proposed taxes must be noted. 

 
5. Additional Notes on the Plat and the Commitment: 

 
a. The Commitment lists the subject property as both Abstract and Torrens at 

Schedule A.5., then shows it solely as Abstract under the legal description. 
 

 
  The title company must provide a Torrens Certificate that should match the 



Mr. Mark Kaltsas 
March 1, 2022 
Page 5 
 
 

DOCSOPEN\ND115\164\782548.v3-3/1/22 

  Plat and Commitment legal description, and I must be provided with a copy of  
  said certificate.  Furthermore, the Commitment must be revised to include the  
  Torrens classification (and certificate number) under the Schedule A.5. legal  
  description. 
 
  Furthermore, if the Property is confirmed to be both Abstract and Torrens as  
  stated, signature blocks must be added to the Plat as follows: 
 

1) County Examiner of Titles, Hennepin County 
2) County Registrar of Titles, Hennepin County 

 
6. Compliance with Minnesota Statutes Section 505.03.  Minnesota law requires any 

preliminary plat abutting upon an existing or proposed county road to be submitted to the 
County Engineer for review in accordance with Minnesota Statutes Section 505.03, 
subdivision 2.  The Property abuts the existing County Road No. 90.  As such, the Plat 
should be submitted, if it has not been already, to the county engineer for review and an 
opportunity to provide written comments.  Upon recording, the City will be required to 
also submit a certificate or other evidence showing submission of the preliminary plat to 
the county engineer.  (See also number 3.c. above) 
 

7. Wetlands.  A portion of the Property contains wetlands which may be subject to federal, 
state or local regulation and may affect the right to use or improve the wetlands. (See also 
number 3.f. above) 

   
This letter does not purport to set forth every matter relevant to a determination of whether title 
to the property is marketable, and no one should rely upon it for that purpose.  The sole purpose 
of this letter is to identify required signatories to the plat and related issues of interest to the City 
in connection with platting, as evidenced by the Commitment.  
 
This opinion is conditioned upon the issuance of a title policy in favor of the City of 
Independence, insuring the City’s interests as they appear in the plat of HILLTOP PRAIRIE.  
 
Very truly yours,  
 
/s/Robert J.V. Vose 
Robert J.V. Vose 
 
RJVV:pat 
 
cc: Otto Associates, Engineers & Land Surveyors, Inc., via paul@ottoassociates.com 
 
 



 

H:\INDEPEND_CI_MN\0C1125266\1_Corres\C_To Others\2021-08-13 Prelim Plat Comment #1\HilltopPrairie_PrePlatReview_2021-08-13.docx 

 

August 13, 2021 

 

City of Independence 

Attn: Mark Kaltsas 

1920 County Road 90 

Independence, MN 55359 

 

RE: Preliminary Plat Application 

 Hilltop Prairie 

 Engineering Review #1 

 

Dear Mark: 

 

As requested, I have completed an engineering review of the documents submitted for the above 

referenced project.  Following are my comments for your consideration: 

 

1. Final plat should identify what will be occurring on remaining parcel east of overhead 

powerlines.  Consider ghost platting parcels to the east to plan for and provide connecting 

through streets with multiple access points. 

2. The city has identified a future trunk gravity sanitary sewer line that would generally be routed 

along the north edge of the proposed plat.  The city will need to have further discussions on the 

size of gravity sewer to route thru this area as it will have impact on the future depth of sewer 

and required easement widths.  Developer should plan on providing a drainage & utility 

easement that would be adequate for future open trench installation.  It is anticipate that the 

sewer future sewer line could be approximately 30 feet deep.   

3. The preliminary plat should be routed to Hennepin County for comment since the development 

is requiring access from CR 90 and abuts the highway.   

4. The roadway profiles do not match the proposed grading contours at the high points and low 

points in the profile.    

5. All applicable city standard details ands specifications should be followed for the final 

construction plans.   

6. Four wet retention ponds are proposed for stormwater runoff management to meet regulatory 

requirements. The following must be considered regarding stormwater management: 

a. The stormwater runoff management system must meet the requirements of the Pioneer 

Sarah Creek Watershed Management Commission (PSCWMC) and the City’s requirements 

set forth by the NPDES MS4 permit.  The PSCWMC requires proposed peak runoff rates 

for the 2, 10, and 100-year – 24-hour events be maintained at or below existing rates, retain 

a volume equal to 1.1” over the new impervious surfaces on site, and maintain proposed 

Total Suspended Solid (TSS) and Total Phosphorus (TP) loads to existing conditions.  By 

meeting PSCWMC requirements, the system will meet the MS4 requirements.  A 

stormwater runoff management plan meeting these requirements must be submitted to 

verify adequate siting for facilities has been provided. 

b. Stormwater runoff management facilities necessary for the ultimate development (street 

construction, driveways, buildings, etc.) should be installed with street construction to 

ensure all drainage ways, watersheds, and runoff management systems are constructed per 

the approved Stormwater Management Plan. 

52

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Updated.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Noted.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Noted. Watershed permit in progress.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Noted.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Turn lane added. City to send to county

Paul.Otto
Text Box
Noted. City to review.

Paul.Otto
Text Box
Future sewer to be in road R/W

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Otto responses/comments in red.



Preliminary Plat Application  

Hilltop Prairie  

Page 2  

 

H:\INDEPEND_CI_MN\0C1125266\1_Corres\C_To Others\2021-08-13 Prelim Plat Comment #1\HilltopPrairie_PrePlatReview_2021-08-13.docx 

 

7. Final Plans should include the following: 

a. Grading, Drainage, and Erosion Control Plan 

b. Street Construction Plan 

c. Landscape and Restoration Plan (including invasive species removal) 

d. SWPPP meeting NPDES requirements 

8. The following permits will need to be obtained and copies provided to the City conditional to 

City approval: 

a. NPDES Permit for Stormwater Discharge 

b. PSCWMC Permit 

c. Wetland Conservation Act (WCA) Permit (MCWD and HAA are listed as the LGU)  

d. Hennepin County, Access/Utility Permit (a turnlane may be necessary) 

9. The applicant will be required to submit a Maintenance Agreement for all stormwater 

management structures and facilities.  The agreement must define maintenance responsibilities 

following completion of project, specify types and frequencies of inspection and maintenance 

activities, designate who will conduct inspection and maintenance activities, and outline 

reporting requirements.   

10. Drainage and Utility Easements must be provided as follows: 

a. Over all stormwater management facilities used to meet regulatory requirements. 

b. Over all wetland and buffers. 

c. All swales and piping providing drainage for multiple properties. 

d. 10’ along all front lot lines, side lot lines, rear lot lines, and adjacent to Development 

boundary. 

 

 

 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact me to discuss. 

 

Sincerely, 

Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

 

Andrew Budde, P.E. 

Principle 

 

53

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Noted.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Noted.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Noted. Does City have a template?

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Reflected on plans.



 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Mark Kaltsas, Independence City Planner/Administrator 
 
CC:  Andrew Budde, City Engineer 
  Shawn Bode, Public Works Supervisor 
 
FROM: Shane Nelson, Water Resources Engineer 
 
DATE: August 26, 2021 
 
RE: Hilltop Prairie – Water Resources Review  
  
 
We have received and reviewed the Construction Plans, dated July 14, 2021, and Stormwater Report, 
dated July 13, 2021, for Hilltop Prairie prepared by Otto Associates in the City of Independence and 
the Wetland Delineation Report, dated December 18, 2020, prepared by Braun Intertec.  We would 
offer the following comments in regards to water resources: 
 
Hilltop Prairie is a proposed 13 lot, 62.6-acre residential development. The existing site contains a 
mixture of woodland, meadow/wetland and row crops. The site is adjacent to and drains to an unnamed 
tributary of Pioneer Creek, located 1,500 feet to the west, is currently listed as an impaired water for E-
coli downstream from Painter Lake, which is adjacent to the proposed development. 
 

1. The Water quality volume for the development was calculated using 1.0” over the new 
impervious surfacing. Pioneer-Sarah Watershed requires 1.1” over new impervious surfacing. 
The Applicant shall revise the report and model accordingly. 

2. Stormwater is proposed to be controlled by 4 NURP basins located within drainage and utility 
easements.  The Stormwater Report includes a brief statement indicating that infiltration is 
infeasible, however, no supporting information has been received.   

3. NURP basins require skimmer structures for the discharge. The skimming device should 
discharge at no greater than 0.5fps on a 2-year event or the outlet shall be submerged no less 
than 0.5 feet from the normal water to the crown of the outlet. Outlet details are not provided 
so it is unclear if this criterion is met. 

4. Impervious area canulations indicate that 5.0 acres of impervious surfacing will be created as 
part of this development. This is expected to sufficiently cover 1.7 acres for the roadway, ~5,500 
square feet for the proposed turn lane leaving 138,248 sq ft for the 13 lots. This appears to be a 
reasonable estimate of impervious surfaces.  

5. The Applicant shall provide a Geotechnical Report showing depth to groundwater as well as 
soil types. Please provide at least 1 soil boring at the location of all stormwater basins in addition 
to the soil borings required by the City Engineer for the road construction. 

6. Pond 4 discharges to a swale that discharges to the southwest into the right of way for County 
Road 90. The outlet for this stormwater is unclear. If there is an existing culvert under County 
Road 90, it shall be clearly depicted on the Preliminary Plans and also included in the 
stormwater model.   

50

Cara.Otto
Text Box
We did both an NPDES calc and a Watershed calc for the design. The pond calcs used 1" per NPDES and the volume abstraction calcs used 1.1" per Watershed requirements.

Cara.Otto
Arrow

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Boring logs added to SWMP.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
78 soil borings were completed throughout the site. Seasonally saturated soils were found within 3' of the surface for all of them.Geotechnical borings show type C soils (included in SWMP)

Cara.Otto
Arrow

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Culvert included.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Outlet details (incl. skimmers) are included on Sheet 13 of construction plan set. Pond 3 is routed to Pond 4 which has a skimmer structure.



7. There is a low point along the proposed Gustavus Drive located near station 17+00. The 
watershed map indicates this stormwater is directed to Basin #4, however, the routing is unclear. 
The Applicant shall clarify the stormwater flow and routing for this location and indicate if a 
special ditch is proposed at this location.  Further, the Applicant should review the drainage 
arrows at this location to determine if they are indicating the correct flow direction. 

8. The Grading Plans do not depict any agricultural field tile.  Please provide a signed statement 
indicating whether or not agricultural field tile is believed/known to exist. If existing, please 
depict on the plans.   

9. Access routes for maintenance purposes to structures outside the right of way and inlets/ outlets 
at ponding areas shall be depicted on the plans. All access routes are required to have an 8% 
maximum grade, 2% maximum cross slope, shall be 10’ wide and within an easement. Please 
clearly depict on the plans the maintenance route for Pond 4 and revise the Preliminary Plat to 
depict the easements (min 20’ width).  Also please clearly depict the access routes for Ponds 1, 
2, and 3 on the Preliminary Plans.   

10. Two (2) feet of cover is recommended over all roadway cross culverts.  
11. Water quality calculations must be submitted to ensure that no net increase in total phosphorus 

and Total Suspended Solids (TSS) will result as part of the development. The Applicant shall 
provide a P8 or MIDS model for review. 

12. The Wetland Delineation Report has recently been received and is under review.   
13. Buffer strips will need to be established as part of this project. The Preliminary Plans shall 

indicate an appropriate BWSR, MnDOT, NRCS, OR SWCD seed mixture for establishing 
buffer vegetation. Buffer signage and a buffer maintenance plan and agreement will also need 
to be prepared and submitted to the City and Watershed. This agreement shall cover the first 
two growing seasons following initial establishment to ensure proper vegetation. 

14. The project will require a watershed permit from Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Management 
Commission.  

15. The project will require a NPDES permit (General Permit MNR100001) from the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency (MPCA). 

 
 
At this time, we have not received sufficient information to confirm that this project meets City 
ordinances related to water resources.  It is recommended that the applicant revise and resubmit 
addressing the comments above.  
 
 
 
 

51

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Revised.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Added access routes to Ponds 1&4. Ponds 2 & 3 have outlets adjacent to ROW.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Submitted.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Noted.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
To be submitted after Watershed review.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
In progress.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
Noted.

Cara.Otto
Text Box
At the access off CR 90 there is not enough existing ditch depth for 2' of cover. Two smaller culverts were used instead of one larger one to maximize depth.

Cara.Otto
Arrow

Paul.Otto
Text Box
Client is working on draintile determination. Will update plans as needed.



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 
Consideration of Resolution Reestablishing Assessment for Property Located at 2930 

Lindgren Lane 
 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: March 15, 2022 

 
 
Discussion: 
The City recently approved the minor subdivision of 2930 Lindgren Lane and 2914 Lindgren to 
allow a lot line rearrangement to add property to 2914 Lindgren Lane.  There is an existing deferred 
assessment on the 2930 Lindgren Lane Property.  A question was posed to the City from the title 
company conduction the closing of the transaction asking if the deferred assessment would have 
to be paid at this time.  The City does not have to collect the assessment at this time as the actual 
homestead and remaining property for 2930 is not being transferred and the owner would like to 
leave the assessment until such time as the principal homestead is sold.  In order to allow this to 
occur and to ensure that the assessment remains on the newly redefined 2930 Lindgren Lane 
property, it was recommended that the City adopt a resolution recertifying the assessment and 
applicable interest against the newly defined 2930 Lindgren Lane property. 

 
 

Recommendation: 
City Council is being asked to consider approving RESOLUTION No. 22-0315-02 confirming 
the deferral of special assessments on the property located at 2930 Lindgren Lane following 
approval of a lot line rearrangement which alters the underlying property.   
 

Attachment: RESOLUTION No. 22-0315-02 



	

__________________________________________________________________________ 
763-479-0527 (Phone)                               1920 County Road 90                                   763-479-0528 (Fax) 

Independence, MN 55359 
www.ci.independence.mn.us 

	

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-0315-02 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DEFERRAL OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT  
FOR PROPERTY AT 2930 LINDGREN LANE (FORMERLY PID NO. 13-118-24-24-

0031) AND REPLACING DEFERRAL OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT  
BY DOCUMENT NUMBER 2892035 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Independence, Hennepin County, 
Minnesota (the “City”), as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, the property owner of 2930 Lindgren Lane, Independence, MN, formerly 
PID No. 13-118-24 24-0031 (the “Property”), requested a deferral of special assessments from 
Levy No. 14129 and submitted an application and authorization for deferral of special assessments 
(the “Application and Authorization”) to the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City approved the Application and Authorization on November 25, 1997, 
and the approved Application and Authorization was filed on March 2, 1998 as Document Number 
2892035; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Application and Authorization affirms that the taxes on the property 
levied for collection are so deferred according to the terms of the Application and Authorization 
until such time as it is deemed the applicant no longer qualifies or the property loses its eligibility; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, a portion of the Property is being sold to an adjacent property owner for 
purposes of combination with the adjacent parcel; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after the sale of the portion of the Property and the combination of that 
portion into the adjacent parcel, each parcel will be assigned new parcel identification numbers; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the initial Application and Authorization and the sale 
of the portion of the Property and considered all relevant information offered by all interested 
parties; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the special assessment against the Property, 
formerly PID No. 13-118-24 24-003 (New PID is not yet assigned), should continue to be deferred; 
and 



	

 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution approving the deferral of special assessments from Levy No. 

14129 on the above-described property replaces the deferral of special assessment by Document 
Number 2892035; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, the special assessment on the above-described property in 
the original amount of $6,228.80 should continue to be deferred with interest, at the rate of 7.5% 
for the property at 2930 Lindgren Lane, formerly PID No. 13-118-24 24-003 (New PID is not yet 
assigned) is hereby approved.  
 
 
 
     This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence this 15th day of 
March 2022, by a vote of _______ayes and ________nays. 
 
 
 

                                                                                            
_________________________________                                                                                            
Marvin Johnson, Mayor 

                                                                                
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
	


	20-0476 CONST PLANS 12-16-21.pdf
	20-0476 01 SHEET COVER SHEET 12-16-21
	20-0476 02 SHEET WETLAND BUFFER & PRESERVATION PLAN 12-16-21
	20-0476 03 SHEET GRADING PLAN 12-16-21
	20-0476 04 SHEET SWPPP PROJECT INFORMATION 12-16-21
	20-0476 05 SHEET SWPPP NARRATIVE 12-16-21
	20-0476 06 SHEET SWPPP 12-16-21
	20-0476 07 SHEET STREET & STORM SEWER - GUSTAVUS DRIVE 0+00 TO 12+00 12-16-21
	20-0476 08 SHEET STREET & STORM SEWER - GUSTAVUS DRIVE 12+00 TO 24+00 12-16-21
	20-0476 09 SHEET STREET & STORM SEWER - QUASS CUTOFF REALIGNMENT 12-16-21
	20-0476 10 SHEET STREET & STORM SEWER - TURN LANE PLAN 12-16-21
	20-0476 11 SHEET STREET & STORM SEWER - TURN LANE PLAN 12-16-21
	20-0476 12 SHEET DETAILS 12-16-21
	20-0476 13 SHEET DETAILS 12-16-21




